BRIEF OF APPELLANT

THE STATE OF SOUTH
CAROLINA

In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM COLLETON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Carmen T. Mullen, Circuit Court
Judge

Case No. 2017-001017

Lynne Van House,

Appellant

v.

Colleton County,

Respondent

**FINAL BRIEF OF
APPELLANT**

RECEIVED
MAR 21 2018
SC Court of Appeals

Lynne Van House
19897 Augusta Hwy
Round O, SC 29474
843) 835-8038
Appellant (acting pro se)

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

THE STATE OF SOUTH
CAROLINA

In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM COLLETON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Carmen T. Mullen, Circuit Court
Judge

Case No. 2017-001017

Lynne Van House,

Appellant

v.

Colleton County,

Respondent

**FINAL BRIEF OF
APPELLANT**

Lynne Van House
19897 Augusta Hwy
Round O, SC 29474
843) 835-8038
Appellant (acting pro se)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Cases, Statutes, Codes, Authorities, and Exhibits

CASES AND AUTHORITIES:

- BESS v. BRACKEN COUNTY FISCAL COURT*, 210 SW. 3d 177, 180 Ky (2006) pg. 23, 39
- BRADY v. MARYLAND* 373 U.S. 83 (1963) pg. 14, 24, 48
- BRINEGAR v. UNITED STATES*, 338 US 160 at 174 (1949) pg. 36
- CANTWELL v. CONNECTICUT*, 310 US 296 (1940) pg. 19
- CITY OF CUYAHOGA FALLS v. BUCKEYE COMMUNITY HOPE FOUNDATION*, 538 US 188 (2003) pg.27,39
- CITY OF DES PLAINES v. SCIENTIFIC MACHINE MOVERS, INC.* 9 Ill App. 3D 438, 292 NE,2d 154 (1972) pg. 32, 44
- COOLIDGE v. NEW HAMPSHIRE*, 403 US 443,467, et al. (1971) pg. 19
- COOPER v. AARON*, 358 U.S. 1 (1958) .pg. 30
- DAVIS v. WECHLER*, 263 US 22, at 24 (1923) pg. 30, 31
- ELDRIDGE v. MELCHER*, Pa Superior Ct. 381,313A2d 750 (1973) Ann, 97 ALR 374 (1935) pg. 33
- FROST v. RAILROAD COMMISSION*, 271, US 583 (46 S. Ct. 605, 70L.5d.1101) (1926) pg. 39
- GIGLIO v. UNITED STATES*, 405 U.S. 150, (1972) pg. 48
- GAILBRAITH v. MONARCH GOLD DREDGING CO*, 160 Or. 282, 84 P.2d 1110 (1938) pg. 32, 44
- GRAN v. CITY OF ST. PAUL*, 274 Minn. 220, 143 NW.2d 246 (1966) pg. 38
- HALL v. BENEFIT ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD EMPLOYEES*, 164 S.C. 80, 161 SE. 868 (1932) pg. 32
- HAYES v. EAGLE-PICHER INDUSTRIES, INC.* 513 F.2d 892, 894 10th Circuit (1945) pg. 37, 44
- KING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY v. MARY HELEN COAL CORP.* 194 Ky. 435, 239 SW. 799 (1922) pg. 30, 42
- KRISTI M. PERRY/SAN FRANCISCO v. CA GOVERNOR ASCHWARZENEGGER*, Opinion 10-16696, 9th Circuit. (2011) pg. 12, 21, 31

KYLES v. WHITLEY, 514 US 419, (1995) pg. 24, 48

LANIER v. STATE, 486 P.2d 981 (Alas. 1971) pg. 30

O'NEILL, ET AL LOUISVILLE KENNEL CLUB v. JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT, ET AL, 42 USC (1983) pg. 26

MANNING v. WYMER, 273 Cal. App. 2D 519, 78 Cal. Rptr. 600 (1969) pg. 32, 44

MARBURY v. MADISON, 5th US (2 cranch) 137 (1803) pg. 30

MASS. CASU. INS. CO. v. FORMAN, 469 F.2d 259 5th Circuit (1972) pg. 32, 44

MILEWSKI v. ROFLAN CO, 195 F. Supp. 68 D. Mass. (1961) pg. 32, 44

MILLER v. UNITED STATES, 230 f. 2d 486 Cal 192 (1958) pg. 13

MILLER v. MUELLER, 28 Md. App. 141, 343A2d 922 (1975) pg. 34

MIRANDA v. ARIZONA, 384 US 486 (1966) pg. 30

MONTGOMERY v. GOLDSTEIN, 109 Or. 497, 220 P 65, 567 (1923) pg. 31, 33

MIXON v. STATE OF OHIO, 193 F. 3d 389-400 , 6th Circuit (1999) pg. 22

MUNN v. PEOPLE OF ILLINOIS, FIELD, J. 94 US 113 (1876-1900) pg. 22

MURDOCK v. PENNSYLVANIA, 319 US 105 (1943) pg. 27

RODRIGUEZ v. UNITED STATES, 575 US. (2015) pg. 15

SEIBERT v. SEVERINO, 256 F.3d 648,660 7TH CIRCUIT (2001) PG. 21

SHERAR v. CULLEN, 481, F2d. 945 (1973) pg. 34, 39

STATE v. HUGHES, 22 Ariz. App. 19, 522 P2d 780 (1974) pg. 44

STOKES v. SPARTANBURG REG'L MED. CNTR., 368 SC 515,522, 629 S.E. 2d 675, 679 (Ct, App. 2006) pg. 23

SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION CO. v. PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, 18 Cal. 3D 309,(1976)pg. 13, 17,41

THORNTON v. KELLY, 11 R.I. 501,161 SE at 202, Page 28; at 868, (2010) pg. 34, 38

TRUPIANO v. UNITED STATES, 344 US 699 (68 S.Ct. 1229, 92 L.Ed (1948) pg. 8

UNITED STATES VS ADAMS, 422 F.2d 575 (10th Circuit, (1970) pg. 44

UNITED STATES v. AGURS, 75-491, (1976) pg. 24, 48

UNITED STATES VS BEEBE, 180 US 343,352 (1901) pg. 31

UNITED STATES v. CRAVERO, 530 F. 2d 666, 5th Circuit (1976) pg. 44

WAESCHLE v. DRAGOVIC, 576 F3d. 539, 544 (6TH Circuit 2009) pg. 16, 21

WILSON v. EDDY, 2 Cal. Rptr. 826 (1969) pg. 35

WINTERS v. COOK, 489 F.2d 174, 178 (5th Circuit, 1973) pg. 36

YICK VO v. HOPKINS, SHERIFF, 118 US 356 (1886) pg. 40

UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AMENDMENTS, BILL OF RIGHTS:

Amendment 4--"right to be secure against unreasonable searches and seizures" pg. 8, 9, 13, 14, 15, 19

Amendment 5-"depriving of property without due process, or selling without compensation"
Pg. 15, 16,22 ,23

Amendment 6-"right to confront witnesses and assess evidence against him" pg. 8, 9

Amendment 8-"no excessive bail, fines, or cruel or unusual punishment" pg. 22

SOUTH CAROLINA CONSTITUTION--DECLARATION OF RIGHTS:

Article 1, Section 10 "Searches, seizures, invasions of privacy" pg. 9, 13, 14, 15, 19

Article 1, Section 13 "Taking of personal property for sale to another" pg. 10 Article

1, Section 14 "Nature of accusation, confronting witnesses" pg. 8

Article 7, Section 16 "Libel" pg. 27

SOUTH CAROLINA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE:

- Rule 41.1 SCRCPP "Rules and agreements" pg. 45
- Rule 41-2(b) SCRCPP "Dismiss case for lack of timely prosecution" pg. 37
- Rule 43 (k) SCRCPP "Agreements written and signed by both parties" pg. 3, 45
- Rule 5 (a) SCRCPP "papers must be served on all parties" pg. 46
- Rule 75 SCRCPP "papers served to all parties that record has been filed" pg. 4

SOUTH CAROLINA CODE OF LAWS:

- Section 16-5-10 "Conspiracy against civil rights" pg. 36, 37
- Section 16-5-60 "Suits against County for damages" pg. 38
- Section 16-11-510(a) "Animals are property" pg. 9, 13, 22
- Section 16-11-600 "Entry onto another's pasture or other lands" pg. 8, 10
- Section 16-11-640 "unlawful entry into enclosed places" pg. 18
- Section 16-11-650 "Removing, destroying, or leaving down fences" pg. 19
- Section 16-7-150 "Slander and libel" pg. 27, 28
- Section 17-13-140 "Warrants and seizures" pg. 15, 26
- Section 17-13-141 "Keeping records of warrants and affidavits" pg. 15
- Section 17-13-150 "Receiving affidavit and warrant" pg. 15
- Section 47-1-40 "First offense is a misdemeanor" pg. 11, 23
- Section 47-4-20 "Private property breeding livestock" pg. 12
- Section 47-3-940 "Disabling of a service animal" pg. 40
- Section 47-3-950 "Wrongfully obtain, intent to deprive" of a service animal pg. 40

*Definition of: Spoliation of evidence; pg. 23

UNITED STATES CODE OF LAWS:

Title 18, Section 241, 242 "Conspiracy under color of law" pg. 9, 16, 17, 21, 24
Title 42, Section 1983 "Civil action for deprivation of rights" pg. 16
Title 42, Section 1985 "Conspiracy to interfere with civil rights" pg. 36

COLLETON COUNTY ORDINANCES:

6-04-10 "Companion animal hoarder" description pg. 35
6...:04-50 "contracted" animal activists pg. 16
6-24-10 "Personal property animals are livestock, not companions" pg. 9, 13, 22

APPELLANT EXHIBITS:

AC# 1-copies of 9 original misdemeanor citations-2 written for 4 PM on the 13th\ and correct the 7 written as though they were done at 5:30 on the 16th- which is wrong. All were written on the 13th. pg. 11

AC# 2---County Statute about ill-treatment of animals. (47-1-40) Using the actual statute as they did for the charges issued against me, the criminal warrants should never have been issued, as this was a first offense in the County's records-and should have been misdemeanors as my background check lists- pg. 11, 23

AC# 3 and AC# 4)-Plaintiff s Exhibit #9--consisting of 3 pages each-with show standard's pictures and descriptions by breed and a complete listing, by matching breed-of all of the actual weights and vital signs of each dog seized, on May 16, 2016, listed by the County's assigned number. And *garnered from* Plaintiff's Exhibit #9 pg. 14, 23, 28, 38, 50

AC# 5---2 Coastal Coop Electric Co. bills-showing the different addresses of my trailer, and my dog pens. (only one animal seized from my trailer at 19897) pg. 15

AC# 6---Colleton County Animal Control Enforcement Statutes-highlighted with both the actual law in yellow, and what was done to me in pink. Pg. 2, 15, 16

AC# 7---listing of dogs seized, and probable replacements over the next 10 years-with a *low* evaluation of the possible value lost by the seizure of my animals. pg. 49

AC# 8---Hand written receipt by Ms. Taylor indicating return of *one* of my carrying crates, after I complained in open court of their taking several without authorization and while *not* listed anywhere as taken. Pg. 20

AC# 9---copy of landing page for my kennel web site-showing completely *closed* status for many years. Pg. 20

AC# 10-Article: "titer tests and avoiding over-vaccination." Pg. 21, 26

AC# 11---Article about healthy breeding animals "rescued" from a kennel in Missouri, and shipped to California for immediate adoption. Pg. 23

AC# 12---Color copy of the Purina "body Condition" chart, which was claimed as the basis for their condition diagnosis-Respondent's (Plaintiff's) Exhibit# 7.

AC# 13---three pictures of obese dogs advertising well-known companies-apparently thinking they were in good condition.

AC# 14---Article titled "Animal Shelter Fraud" exposing SPCA, HSUS, and "animal welfare" fraud. Pg.28

AC# 15---Article titled "Animal Control Terrorists" exposing armed invasions, seizure, and death of pets by activists. Pg. 28

AC# 16---Article titled: Dept. Of Homeland Security-Eco-terrorism Report-assessment of Animal and Environment Activist activity. Pg. 28

AC# 17---Article titled "FBI top Terrorists: ALF and ELF" including HSUS and PETA expose'.

AC# 18---Article: "Your dog's Best Friend May Be His Attorney" discussing illegal confiscation and impoundment of privately owned animals. Pg. 28

AC# 19---Article from Press & Standard newspaper on line-Ms. Taylor asserting on June 8, 2016 that she had "recently talked" to me, and I agreed to "surrender" my animals. Pg. 38

AC# 20--- Copy of letter from Attorney. S. Thornton, envelope dated June 28, asserting that the County could not comply with Judge Duffie's requirement to keep all the dogs intact until the July 21 hearing. pg.2, 37,39

AC# 21---My statement that was to be read by Mr. Sapp at the May 31, 2016 hearing titled: "My Defense at The Seizure Hearing." (Defendant's (Appellant's) Exhibit #23) pg. 31

AC# 22---Full copy of Appellant's actual criminal background check which lists ONLY misdemeanors, as should have been issued for a first offense charge, (and which appear to show that they have never been heard or cleared)

AC# 23--Article entitled "This Growing Movement Is Pitting Vets vs. Pet Owners" regarding Immunity against common diseases in pet animals, and using titers to guarantee it, rather than re-Vaccinate indiscriminately.

MAGISTRATE COURT "DEFENDANT/APPELLANT" EXHIBITS

#1-Definition of the "Grandfather" clause pg. 8

#2--- Definition of criminal trespass in general pg. 8, 9

#5---US Constitution, 4th Amendment- Warrantless searches, surveillance, privacy. pg. 8, 9, 19

#6---US Constitution, 5th Amendment-due process, taking property for resale, incrimination. pg.

#7---Sixth Amendment -"Miranda" type rights, confront witnesses and evaluate evidence pg. 8, 9

#8---US Constitution 8th Amendment- No excessive bail pg.

#13A-"Collusion" US Code, Title 18-241 pg. 9

#13B---"Collusion" US Code, Title 18-242 pg. 9

#16--- Press and Standard newspaper article on-line about seizure_ pg. 8, 12, 22

#17---Schematic of my real property boundaries and features pg. 8, 16

#18---Overhead photo of my real property from Google Earth pg. 8, 16

#19---Benton's feed sales and charged tickets-5+ month's worth for my small-breed dogs. pg. 12

#20---My bill of sale for puppies, Two-part, with explanations on how I filled them out.

#21---Reviews from PuppyFind sales site on-line, many pages. pg.39

#22--"My Defense at the Seizure Hearing" statement-which was to have been read then, and wasn't.

#24---photos of feed bins, vaccines in fridge, photos of surrounding signs on my property, at the road, and my mailbox, and "no trespassing" signs pg. 8, 12, 15

#25---Revival Animal Health orders over last 10 years pg. 12

#26---Landing page of my kennel web site, www.phoenix-kennel.com stating facility was completely closed to everyone, and why.

#27-list of dogs and cats seized during raid, by breed and name.

#28-Photo of dog seized that they used nylon rope on to muzzle, and rubbed raw sores and lost hair

off her nose. This pie #28 taken on the Friday BEFORE the seizure, after their unwarranted search; but injured pies (from the shelter) were used to appear that I had done the damage.

#29-#30-two articles about animal enterprise terrorism-animal activism.

#31---Pet Business magazine article "Swept Away?" about animal activism killing the multi-billion dollar pet business in the US.

#32 & 33---articles about over-vaccination health problems--written by Vets. P g. 21, 26

#34-Plaintiff's Exhibit #1--e-mails *purporting* my surrender of all my animals just 1 day after they were ordered to wait until June 15 to allow due process. pg. 37

#35---Plaintiff's Exhibit #4-Another e-mail *purporting* my surrender of all my animals, and holding out the arrest for criminal charges. pg. 37

#36---Copy of receipt for \$500 I paid Mr. Sapp to defend my right to keep all my dogs. pg. 29

STATEMENT OF THE CASE:

Appellant's Appeal to the Appeals Court is set up in a narrative form, essentially like an oral Argument, with time/date listings, and citations of law and exhibits listings inserted where appropriate in the argument. The Motions that were appealed to Common Pleas Court were: 1) to rescind the search warrants that were signed by Magistrates Duffie and Campbell while based on information garnered by alleged illegal and unlawful invasion of privacy and trespassing; 2) To rescind the alleged "probable cause" to have removed Appellant's animals from her property as authorized by Appellant's special attorney, but never agreed to by Appellant; 3) to declare a Mistrial, because all the facts from both sides were not heard or presented in court before the Order was signed, and Appellant was not allowed to cross-examine Plaintiff's witnesses nor object to any of the evidence submitted before that order stopped the proceedings; and based on several inappropriate and personally abusive remarks by Respondent's just-appointed attorney Mr. Bennett against the Appellant. 4) To have those Orders reversed because of multiple errors of court procedure as alleged in this Motion and in oral argument in Common Pleas Court, and as part of this Motion, a demand for a Compel to Produce Evidence referencing Motions for Discovery introduced three times before, the last with the Appeal to Common Pleas Court.

The original case was appealed timely with fee paid, to the Court of Common Pleas on September 21, 2016 (**R-pg.87-88 and R-pg.101-120**) because of the Order issued by Judge Duffie from Magistrate's Court denying all three of Appellant's Motions as presented, before her cross-examination and objections and most of the County's

evidence, was presented for hearing.

When notified of this Appeal, Judge Duffie prepared an Answer, but requested of Judge Buckner an extension to complete the Answer, as the actual court sessions covered over 10 hours of testimony. This request was granted with a letter to Judge Duffie, with the extension to be until November 15, 2016. Although Judge Buckner ordered Judge Duffie to make Appellant aware of this extension, this was not done, and Appellant was never sent a copy of the Answer from the Magistrate Court.

Appellant attempted to determine in several ways what this Answer contained, but was not given a copy of it before the first Hearing date of November 17, 2016. At that Hearing, Judge Buckner had to leave early because of a funeral he needed to attend-so this case did not come before him on that day. When Appellant attempted to discuss her lack of a copy of the Answer with Respondent's attorney, Mr. Thornton, she was told that she could "probably get a copy from the clerk." When Appellant responded that that solution would have done her no good for this Hearing, if it had come off-and asked if he knew why she'd not gotten a copy of Judge Duffie's Answer-Mr. Thornton replied that "nobody ever pays any attention to pro se claimants anyway." Appellant's Motion to Reverse was filed with the Common Pleas clerk on that day; and Appellant also requested a Compel to Produce Evidence from the Motion of Discovery filed with the original Appeal to Common Pleas.

At the next scheduled Hearing date, November 28, 2016, Mr. Thornton broke in to Appellant's request to have her second Motion heard first because of time constraints; with comments that they were frivolous claims, and the Court should disregard what I

wanted. I had no choice except to request a Continuation, in order to have the time needed to attempt to have my Motions properly heard; which was granted by Judge Buckner.

This Hearing was then continued to February 8, 2017-changed by the court from February 6. The docket was too full, and it was continued by the court to March 17, 2017.

This Hearing before Judge Mullen was held off until Appellant was the last case in the Courtroom. Appellant was given some time to discuss the second Motion as to Reversal of the Motions from Magistrate Court first, as requested, and the clerical errors she alleged, and was told that that would be considered in a bit, but that Judge Mullen needed to read the Appeal to Common Pleas Court now, as she knew nothing about it. After several minutes of reading on her computer, Judge Mullen then asked Appellant exactly why she had appealed. A few minutes into Appellant's narrative of the case under appeal, and after a few comments by Mr. Thornton relative to why he thought she was still fighting this case; Judge Mullen said she needed to take this "under advisement" and adjourned the Court subject to her Judgement; which would be issued later.

On March 22, 2017, Judge Mullen issued her Judgements; Appellant received her copy on March 25, 2017 by mail. All that was said was that both were "respectfully denied;" **(R-pg.33-38)** The main Appeal was because there were "no errors of law?" made in Magistrate's Court, and the shorter Reversal Motion simply respectfully denied with no explanation: with no citations of law, no arguments to refute Appellant's; no explanations of any kind.

This is then brought forward to this Appeal to the Appeals Court. Appellant is appealing

all the judgments and orders of both courts, as none of them ever addressed by citation, argument, or opinion, or by countering Appellant's citations; *why* her personal property was seized and sold without due process of law; exactly *what* Appellant was actually charged with that ended by her extremely valuable property being arbitrarily seized and sold without restitution; if those original charges in Magistrate's Court were dropped, *why* is her personal property gone with no restitution; and finally; *who* actually did the original invasion of privacy and criminal trespass (in Appellant's surveilled absence) in order to gather supposed evidence of whatever crime she was alleged to have committed? Appellant's arguments are arranged numerically, and narrative statements, time line, and evidence are all attached by number of argument in order. In addition, several Exhibits have been developed primarily from the County's Exhibits that Appellant was able to procure, which actually show that her animals were not being poorly cared for, and were not in any danger whatsoever; but were likely taken simply because the participants were unwilling to accept her on-going breeding of her animals; and to be able to sell valuable animals and assist local animal shelters to boost their budgets, with little extra expense and (up to this point) no resistance to their taking and selling of private citizen's personal property being made. These extra exhibits *developed from testimony in Magistrate Court* are noted by AC (Appeals Court)# whatever. .. An example (AC #1) because *no evidence/ Discovery* was given.

ARGUMENT NO. 1

Synopsis and questions of law:

Both the Respondents and Mr. McNeil's original complainant did commit several well

-documented acts of Invasion of Privacy; Unwarranted Surveillance; and Criminal Trespass prior to either Search Warrant being issued.

The first Search/Seizure warrant was issued based on the unlawfully obtained evidence garnered on the unwarranted search carried out by the Animal Control officers on Friday March 13, 2016.

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