THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM COLLETON COUNTY
Carmen T. Mullen, Circuit Court Judge

Lynne Van House,Appellant,

v.

Colleton County,Respondent.

Appellate Case No. 2017-001017

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

RECEIVED
MAR 19 2018
SC Court of Appeals

Lynne Van House
19897 Augusta Highway
Round O, SC 29474
(843) 835-8038
Pro Se Appellant

Sean P. Thornton, Esquire
P.O. Box 157
Walterboro, SC 29910
(843) 466-6779
Attorney for Respondent

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM COLLETON COUNTY
Carmen T. Mullen, Circuit Court Judge

Lynne Van House,Appellant,

v.

Colleton County,Respondent.

Appellate Case No. 2017-001017

Statement of Issues on Appeal

Respondent disputes the myriad of issues as cited in Appellant's initial brief. The case at bar was decided by an Order from Magistrate Elbert O. Duffie enforcing a settlement agreement between the parties. That decision was upheld by The Honorable Carmen T. Mullen. Therefore the only issue properly before the Court is whether the two lower courts erred in that holding.

Statement of the Case

The following statement of the case is mainly comprised of excerpts (and summaries thereof) from the 21 page magistrate's return.

On May 31, 2016 a hearing was held in the Colleton County Magistrate Court pursuant to a written Request for Seizure from Colleton County dated May 15, 2016 and Request for Custody Hearing dated May 17, 2016 to determine whether cause exists for seizure of certain animals. Reginald McNeil, Director of the Colleton County Animal Control Department, appeared on behalf of Colleton County. Attorney Benjamin C.P. Sapp appeared on behalf of Lucille Lynne VanHouse. (appellant herein) Mr. Sapp advised the Court that appellant waived her appearance at the hearing and he would be speaking on her behalf.

Mr. Sapp informed the Court that an evidentiary hearing was not necessary because appellant consented that there was probable cause for removing her animals from her property. He advised the Court that he and his client had seen photographs and spoken with Deputy Taylor. He stated that it was a horrible situation. He advised the Court that his understanding is that appellant can only have 24 animals on her property pursuant to the Colleton County Code of Ordinances and that she is violation of that code. Attorney Sapp advised that appellant waived her rights to the other 49 animals and she consented to a finding of probable cause to remove the animals from her property.

Mr. McNeil advised the Court that 68 dogs and cats were removed in total. Mr. Sapp stated that appellant consents to the animals remaining in the custody of the County. The Court was also advised that a court date was scheduled for June 21, 2016 for the Magistrate level charges brought

against appellant. Deputy Taylor stated that care costs for the animals was approximately \$15,000.00. Attorney Sapp stated that he discussed the issue with Trice (employee of ColletonCounty animal control) and Trice advised him that if appellant relinquished the animals the care providers would waive the reimbursement for the care cost. Trice confirmed this.

Mr. Sapp stated that he wished to preserve appellant's right to request return up to 24 of the dogs to her so that he could discuss with her whether she wanted to seek return of the 24 dogs or relinquish all of the dogs in order to have the care cost fees waived. Mr. Sapp advised the Court and parties that he would let animal control know appellant's intentions by the end of the week as to whether she will request custody back of some of the animals. All parties agreed to these terms on the record. Thereafter, on June 1, 2016, the Court issued its written order confirming the agreement of the parties.

Mr. Sapp then notified Officer McNeil, Deputy Taylor, and Trice to let them know that Appellant was agreeing to relinquish all of the animals in exchange for waiver of the \$15,000.00 restitution and dismissal of the Magistrate charges. He represented to these individuals that he had authority from VanHouse to act on her behalf. In reliance on Sapp's representation the Magistrate level charges were dropped. An email from Sapp's office dated Friday, June 3, 2016 was sent to Trice confirming relinquishment of all of the animals in exchange for a waiver of restitution. Trice responded "yes" to the agreement. Then Trice sent an email asking if the agreement was effective immediately and Sapp's office responded by email "yes."

On June 14, 2016 the Magistrate Court received a detailed letter from appellant outlining several concerns with the matter of difference with her attorney. The Court treated the letter as a motion to reconsider the Court's order of June 1, return some of the animals to appellant, and make a determination whether the search warrants issued were legal. The Court scheduled a hearing to address

these issues for June 21, 2016. Present at the hearing were Reginald McNeil, Deputy Jody Taylor, Colleton County Animal Control employee Ashley Vitello, Michelle Reed, Mary Campbell, Shelia Ellis, Talulah Trice, Lori Campbell, Frannie Derthoffer, attorney Benjamin C.P. Sapp, and appellant.

At the onset of the hearing, Mr. Sapp moved to be relieved as counsel for appellant due to differences that had arisen. Attorney Sapp stated that he talked with appellant the day after the first hearing and she agreed it would be in the best interest to release the dogs given there were criminal charges. He then stated appellant subsequently filed the written letter requesting the Court reconsider its order and that he had not seen the letter. Appellant consented to the motion to have Mr. Sapp relieved as her attorney. The Court granted the motion with the consent of the parties.

Appellant was sworn under oath by the Court and gave testimony and argument related to her motion to reconsider the Court's order of June 1, return some of the animals, and make a determination whether the search warrants issued were legal. The hearing was ended prematurely because of a health issue that unexpectedly arose with her son in the courtroom. EMS was called to the scene and appellant's son was transported via EMS to the hospital. Due to the emergency circumstances the hearing was adjourned by the Court until a later date.

The hearing resumed on July 12, 2016. Present was Reginald McNeil, appellant, Deputy Jody Taylor, Colleton County Animal Control Officer Ed Spears, Talulah Trice, and Michelle Reed. Appellant was sworn under oath and continued her testimony and argument.

The hearing reconvened on July 20, 2016. Director Reginald McNeil of the Colleton County Animal Control Shelter was present along with attorney E.W. Bennett, Jr. who advised the Court he would be representing Colleton County in the matter going forward. Appellant was also present.

Prior to continuing with testimony and argument related to appellant's motion for reconsideration and return of some of her animals, Mr. Bennett made a motion for a hearing to

determine whether there was an enforceable settlement agreement between the parties entered into during the week of May 31, 2016. Mr. Bennett stated it was his understanding that an agreement was reached between appellant through her attorney Mr. Sapp and Colleton County. Appellant was to relinquish control of all of the animals and Colleton County agreed to dismiss all 10 outstanding Magistrate level citations. Mr. Bennett stated that the Magistrate level citations were in fact dismissed by McNeil. Mr. Bennett also stated that the County had waived \$18,000.00 in treatment costs related to the animals. In response, appellant stated she never saw emails between attorney Sapp and the County. She did acknowledge hiring Mr. Sapp and giving him a \$500.00 retainer. Magistrate Duffie determined that an evidentiary hearing was appropriate on the County's motion to determine whether there was an enforceable settlement agreement.

Colleton County then called attorney Benjamin C.P. Sapp and after being duly sworn he testified as follows. He was representing appellant on a probate matter when the issue regarding the animals came about. Appellant retained him to represent her on this issue regarding the animals and paid him a \$500.00 retainer. He was also representing her with regard to the 10 Magistrate level citations she received.

Sapp stated that he and appellant met and discussed the matter at length regarding the initial seizure held on May 31, 2016. Sapp stated that she was very upset and agreed that Sapp should attend the seizure hearing in her absence. Sapp testified that prior to the hearing he met with Deputy Taylor, the Animal Control Officer, representatives from Hilton Head Humane Society, and representatives from Beaufort County that were providing services to the animals. He stated that the County and the service providers were going to levy \$15,000.00 in restitution for animal care costs against appellant. Prior to the hearing date Sapp arranged an interview with himself, appellant and Deputy Taylor. Appellant gave a statement at that time. Deputy Taylor showed Sapp pictures and it was "pretty disturbing stuff."

At the seizure hearing Sapp stated he could not agree to anything that day and would talk with appellant the next day with regard to resolving the matter. The following day he called appellant and told her what happened. Appellant was upset, however, she agreed that it would be in her best interest to relinquish all of the animals.

Sapp testified he notified the Court, Deputy Taylor, and Animal Control Officer McNeil about the agreement. He stated that it was his opinion that relinquishment of custody of all of the animals was in her best interest and they would deal with any General Sessions criminal charges later on. Sapp testified appellant authorized him to enter into a binding agreement to relinquish all of the dogs in exchange for a waiver of the \$15,000.00 in restitution and dismissal of the Magistrate level tickets. Mr. Sapp called Officer McNeil, Deputy Taylor, and Trice to let them know that appellant was agreeing to relinquish all of the animals in exchange for waiver of the \$15,000.00 restitution and dismissal of the Magistrate charges. He represented to these individuals that he had authority from appellant to act on her behalf. In reliance on Sapp's representation the Magistrate level charges were dropped.

An email from Sapp's office dated Friday, June 3, 2016 was sent to Trice confirming relinquishment of all of the animals in exchange for a waiver of restitution. Trice responded "yes" to the agreement. Then Trice sent an email asking if the agreement was effective immediately and Sapp's office responded by email "yes."

Plaintiff's Exhibit #1 which is 5 pages of emails was admitted into evidence over objection by appellant on the grounds that she had no knowledge of the emails.

The County began its case in chief on the original motion hearing by presenting Dr. Mary Campbell as a witness. After being duly sworn under oath Dr. Campbell testified as follows. She is the owner and veterinarian at Port Royal Veterinary Hospital. She received her degree from Michigan State University Veterinary School. She has 25 years' experience as a veterinarian with 7 years in Port Royal.

She is certified in veterinary forensic science. She has assisted in about 25 abuse cases. She has been qualified and testified as an expert 10 times in Court.

The County made a motion to qualify Dr. Campbell as an expert in the field of veterinary science and she was qualified by the Court without objection. Campbell testified that she assisted in the treatment and removal of appellant's animals. She testified that the smell resembled a septic tank. She saw 5 cat remains. There was a cage of decomposed birds and bird skeletons. There was a cage with a dead cat. There was a cage with a skeletonized guinea pig. Campbell testified she had never encountered anything like this before. She was shocked at the number of remains. There were bones scattered 20 to 30 yards around the area of the burial pit. It did not appear to her there any attempts to bury the animals. There were tracks in the pens where the dogs were circling and pacing. This indicated they were under stress and had lack of exercise. The smell around the area made her eyes burn. Campbell testified cleanliness was absent and there was a huge amount of fecal matter, standing water, and debris on the property. Campbell did not find any dishes with food in them. These were the worst accommodations she has ever seen. Campbell testified in a situation there were dead animals in pens with live animals, the live animals likely ate the dead animals. Campbell testified she treated the most severely needy of the live animals which was about 12 to 15. She examined most all of the others.

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 7 entitled, "Nestle Purina Body Conditioning System" was admitted into evidence without objection. Campbell testified this system is designed to be an objective way to assess and score animal body condition. In this case there were dogs in the range from 1 to 4. She treated the dogs that scored 1's and 2's. The dogs were emaciated, ribs and hips were easily visible, matting was $\frac{3}{4}$ of an inch thick and the dogs had to be anesthetized to be shaved and treated. The dogs were covered in fleas and 3 to 4 different species of ticks. The dogs has intestinal parasites. The dogs were not receiving enough caloric intake. She had no doubt the animals were ill-treated. It is her recommendation as a veterinarian that appellant never receive the animals back due to the appalling conditions and filthy

conditions of the animals. Campbell testified the property is not suitable to keep animals. Photographs of these conditions were admitted.

The hearing was reconvened on July 27, 2016. Attorney Bennett informed the Court and parties that he had been advised that all the animals had been adopted out, spayed and neutered. The Court heard arguments from both parties related to the County's motion to enforce settlement agreement. After hearing the argument of the parties, the Court found the settlement agreement to be in existence, valid, and binding upon parties and granted the County's motion to enforce the terms of the settlement agreement. In accord, the Court dismissed appellant's motions for reconsideration and return of the animals to her. The Court issued its Order Enforcing the Prior Settlement Agreement and Dismissing Respondent's Motion to Reconsider Order issued by this Court on June 1, 2016 and Motion to Return to Respondent Some Animals Previously Seized by Colleton County. Thereafter, Appellant timely filed a Notice of Appeal. Her initial Appeal to the Circuit Court was denied by The Honorable Carmen T. Mullen by Order dated March 22, 2017. This Appeal followed.

Argument

Magistrate Duffie correctly ruled that the appellant and Colleton County had entered into an agreement to resolve the custody of the animals herein.

Appellant admits that she hired Mr. Sapp to represent her with a \$500 retainer. *R. p. 180*. She agreed to have Mr. Sapp attend the hearing for her. *R. p. 181*. Mr. Sapp informed the Court that an evidentiary hearing was not necessary because Appellant consented that there was probable cause for removing her animals from her property. He advised the Court that he and his client had seen photographs and spoken with Deputy Taylor. He stated that it was a horrible situation. He advised the Court that his understanding is that appellant can only have 24 animals on her property pursuant to the Colleton County Code of Ordinances and that she is violation of that code. Attorney Sapp advised that appellant waived her rights to the other 49 animals and she consented to a finding of probable cause to remove the animals from her property. . *R. p. 175-176*

At the seizure hearing Mr. Sapp stated he could not agree to anything that day (as to the 24 remaining animals) and would talk with appellant the next day with regard to resolving the matter. The following day he called appellant and told her what happened. Appellant was upset, however, she agreed that it would be in her best interest to relinquish all of the animals. . *R. p. 176*

Sapp testified he notified the Court, Deputy Taylor, and Animal Control Officer McNeil about the agreement. He stated that it was his opinion that relinquishment of custody of all of the animals was in her best interest and they would deal with any General Sessions criminal charges later on. Sapp testified appellant authorized him to enter into a binding agreement to relinquish all of the dogs in exchange for a waiver of the \$15,000.00 in restitution and dismissal of the Magistrate level tickets. **Mr. Sapp called Officer McNeil, Deputy Taylor, and Trice to let them know that appellant was agreeing to relinquish all of the animals in exchange for waiver of the \$15,000.00 restitution and dismissal of the Magistrate**

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